
MORGAN COUNTY COMMISSION 

A G E N D A  

October 01, 2024 

10:00 AM 

150 East Washington Street, Madison, GA 

2nd Floor Board Room 
 

 

Pledge and Invocation 
  

Agenda Approval 
  

Minutes 
1. BOC Minutes 09-03-2024 

  

Unfinished Business 
2. Usher Richardson 

  

Planning Commission Unfinished Business 
3. Wes Bancroft on behalf of Towers LLC, is requesting a Conditional Use approval for a 

telecommunications tower on 149.6 acres located on Paxson Dairy Road (tax Parcel 007-

026) 

  

Planning Commission New Business 
4. Rochelle Wright is requesting a zoning map amendment, from AR to AG, for 57.9 acres 

located at 2761 Athens Highway (Tax Parcel 025-065). 

5. Rochelle Wright is requesting conditional use approval for a short term rental on 57.9 

acres located at 2761 Athens Highway (Tax Parcel 025-065). 

  

New Business 
6. Section 5311 Grant Application 

7. Resolution to Amend the Budget 

8. Revised Advantage Behavioral Health Lease 

9. Charter Broadband Infrastructure Agreement Second Amendment 

10. County Manager Report 

11. Public Comments on Agenda Items 

12. Commissioner Comments 

- 1 -



  September 3, 2024 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 
  

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, MET 

THIS DAY IN REGULAR SESSION.  

 

MEETING WAS HELD ON THE SECOND FLOOR OF THE ADMINISTRATION 

BUILDING. 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Bill Kurtz, Vice-Chair Blake McCormack, Commissioners Donald Harris, 

Ben Riden, Jr., and Philipp von Hanstein 

 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres, Assistant County Manager Mark Williams, County 

Attorney Christian Henry, and County Clerk Kim Cox 

  

 

The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and 

Invocation. 

 

AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

Motion by Commissioner Riden, seconded by Commissioner McCormack, to approve the agenda 

with the following modification: to add Advantage Behavior Health Lease under New Business. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

MINUTES 
September 3, 2024, BOC Meeting 

 

Motion by Commissioner McCormack, Seconded by Commissioner Riden to approve the 

minutes as presented. Motion passed unanimously. 

 

WES BANCROFT, ON BEHALF OF TOWERS, LLC, REQUESTED CONDITIONAL 

USE APPROVAL FOR A TELECOMMUNICATIONS TOWER ON 149.6 ACRES 

LOCATED ON PAXON DAIRY ROAD (TAX PARCEL 007-026) 

 

 

On July 2, 2024, the Board of Commissioners tabled the request from Wes Bancroft, on 

behalf of Towers, LLC, for a new cell tower on 149.6 acres located on Paxon Dairy Road 

(Tax Parcel 007-026). Neither the applicant nor the opposition was at the BOC meeting. 

 

On June 27, 2024, the Planning Commission heard the application request for the subject 

property. The staff presented a report to the Planning Commission and noted that the 

application was almost identical to one approved in 2020. The 2020 approved tower was 

not constructed within the time frame allowed by the ordinance, and the approval 

expired. 

 

- 2 -



  September 3, 2024 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 
  

The applicant's representative spoke in favor of the request and agreed to the staff 

conditions that an engineered analysis and landscaping plan be submitted with the 

building permit and its application. 

 

John and Tricia Bostwick opposed the application, stating that the proposed tower 

location would be adjacent to their future home place, in which they have already 

invested. 

 

The Planning Commission recommended denying the application in an 8-0 vote. They suggested 

the tower be relocated across Paxson Dairy Road or elsewhere on the property. 

 

On August 6, 2024, the applicant requested a deferral of the item until September 3, 2024. 

 

On August 28, 2024, Chuck Jarrell, the director of Planning and Zoning, received notice from 

the applicant's attorney stating they needed more time to gather the requested information. He 

asked for the item to be deferred until October 1, 2024, BOC meeting. 

 

Motion was made by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner McCormack to table 

their request until the October 1, 2024, meeting to give them time to address the information 

requested. 

 

APPEAL OF THE PLANNING DIRECTOR'S DENIAL OF THE LANFORD & 

COMPANY, INC. SIGN APPLICATION 

 

Mr. Lanford submitted a sign application on July 9, 2024, for a digital billboard installed on the 

Ace Hardware property on Eatonton Highway. The application was reviewed by Tara Cooner, 

Senior Planner, for compliance with the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance as it applies to 

"Signs." Ms. Cooner recommended denial of the application based on the following criteria: 

 
1. The sign application was for a digital billboard. Section 17.3 number 2 prohibits digital signs. 

2. The application for a billboard did not meet the criteria under Section 17.6 number 4. d, e, g, 

and k. 

 

Planning Director Chuck Jarrell recommends denying the sign application based on the 

ordinance's language.  

 

Mr. Ellison, the attorney for Lanford & Company, Inc., spoke on behalf of Mr. Landford’s 

application. He stated that denying this application would unlawfully restrict Mr. Landford’s 

speech in violation of the United States and Georgia Constitution. 

 

Motion was made Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to deny the appeal 

of the application filed by Mr. Landford’s attorney, Mr. Ellison. The motion was based on the 

language of the signed ordinance. 

- 3 -



  September 3, 2024 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 
  

Commissioner von Hanstein and Commissioner McCormack were not in favor. The vote was 2-

2, and Chairman Kurtz voted in favor of the motion to deny the request. Motion passed 3-2. 

 

Approval of Title VI and the ADA Plans for Transit 

 

Stephanie Martin, director of Transit, proposed that we update the Title VI and ADA plan 

every three years as a condition for receiving the 5311 Grant. Title VI prohibits recipients 

of federal financial assistance from discriminating based on race, color, or national origin, 

and the ADA prohibits recipients of federal financial assistance from discriminating based 

on disabilities. 

 

Motion was approved by Commissioner McCormack, Seconded by Commissioner  Von 

Hanstein to approve Title VI and the ADA plans. Motion passed Unanimously. 

 

Advantage Behavior Health Lease 

 

Advantage Behavioral Health serves as the Community Service Board for Morgan County. Mrs. 

Frusanna Hayes is the BOC's appointed representative on the board. Under the Georgia code, 

CSBs administer, operate, and provide disability and health services in the areas they serve. 

 

County Manager Adam Mestres has worked closely with the CEO and Board Member, Frusanna 

Hayes, for several years to secure a clinician position at Morgan County. Morgan County 

currently has over 150 residents who receive health services (mental health and addiction) from 

offices in Greene, Athens, or Walton County. He received a call from Fru Hayes last month that 

the CSB added a clinician to serve Morgan County full-time and that they were looking for 

space. 

 

The space at the FSA building has been vacant for over six years and has recently been used for 

document storage. The lease provides the space at no rental costs, considering the much-needed 

mental health services here in Morgan County. Advantage Behavioral will cover its portion of 

the utilities' costs and supply all furnishing and equipment for the space. 

 

Motion to approve the Advantage Behavior Health Services lease agreement as presented by 

Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner McCormack. Motion passed unanimously. 

 

COUNTY MANAGER REPORT 

County Manager Adam Mestres presented a monthly overview of Morgan County government's 

current projects and issues.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

No public comments were made. 

 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

Commissioners made comments and gave updates on liaison assignments. 

- 4 -



  September 3, 2024 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 
  

 

MOTION by Commissioner McCormack, seconded by Commissioner Riden to exit the regular 

session and adjourn at 11:07 a.m. Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Bill Kurtz, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Kim Cox, County Clerk       
 

Morgan County Agriculture Authority Planning Meeting 

 

On September 3, 2024, at 11: 30 a.m., following the BOC Meeting, the Commissioners, County 

Manager, and Assistant County Manager attended the Morgan County AG Authority Planning 

Meeting @ 2380 Athens Hwy., Madison, GA 30650. 

 

The following items were discussed on the Meeting Agenda: 

1. Review Bids  

 Stalls 

2. GDOT Potential 

3. SPLOST Money  

 Time Frame 

      4. Expansion Plan 

      5. Potential Employee 

      6. Overall Plan and End Goal 

 

No action was taken. 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:30 p.m. on September 3, 2024. 

- 5 -



- 6 -



- 7 -



- 8 -



- 9 -



- 10 -



- 11 -



- 12 -



- 13 -



- 14 -



- 15 -



- 16 -



- 17 -



- 18 -



- 19 -



- 20 -



- 21 -



- 22 -



- 23 -



- 24 -



- 25 -



- 26 -



- 27 -



- 28 -



- 29 -



- 30 -



- 31 -



- 32 -



- 33 -



- 34 -



- 35 -



- 36 -



- 37 -



- 38 -



- 39 -



- 40 -



- 41 -



- 42 -



- 43 -



- 44 -



- 45 -



- 46 -



- 47 -



- 48 -



- 49 -



- 50 -



- 51 -



- 52 -



- 53 -



- 54 -



- 55 -



- 56 -



  
 

 

Memorandum 

 

Date:  September 27, 2024 

To:  Morgan County Board of Commissioners 

From:   Tara Cooner 

RE:  September Planning Commission recommendations 

 

The following is a summary of Planning Commission discussions and recommendations from the September 26, 

2024 Planning Commission meeting. 

 

I. Rochelle Wright is requesting a zoning map amendment, from AR to AG, for 57.9 acres located at 

2761 Athens Highway (Tax Parcel 025-065). 

II. Rochelle Wright is requesting conditional use approval for a short term rental on 57.9 acres located 

at 2761 Athens Highway (Tax Parcel 025-065). 

 

These items were presented together, as they are requests for the same property. The conditional use application is 

contingent upon the approval of the rezoning request.  

 

The applicant is the new owner of The Sixty-Two event facility on Athens Highway. She was not informed that the 

house located at 1030 VFW Lane was not part of the facility and short-term rentals that had been occurring there in 

conjunction with the event facility were illegal. The applicant and her husband intend to live in the house on VFW 

Lane so they can be close to their business, and want to construct a new bridal cottage behind the event facility 

building. Short term rentals are prohibited in AR zoning, hence the request to rezone to AG, where short-term 

rentals are a conditional use.  

 

Numerous weddings with overnight stays at the illegal short-term rental were already booked when the applicant 

purchased the property. She indicated during discussions with Staff that the pre-booked short-term rentals ended in 

September, but revealed at the Planning Commission meeting that they actually go through March 2025. Planning 

Commission reviewed the contentious history of short-term rentals in the county, including the many violations of 

the short-term rental at the event facility on Mergendollar Road. 

 

The Planning Commission discussed whether the applicant should be held responsible for the pre-bookings at the 

illegal short-term rental. The applicant is requesting that she be allowed to continue with the existing bookings and 

be approved for a new cottage, to be completed by March so she can continue with booking overnight stays without 

skipping months. The applicant stated that she is now having to vacate her home to accommodate the pre-booked 

short-term rentals. The Planning Commission stated that she should prove the bookings were from the previous 

owner and requested that proof be submitted to the Planning office prior to the BOC meeting on 10-1-24. 

 

Planning Commission unanimously recommended approval of the rezoning application. 

 

Planning Commission unanimously recommended approval of the conditional use application with the following 

conditions: 

 

MORGAN COUNTY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
150 East Washington Street, Suite 200 

P.O. Box 1357 

Madison, Georgia 30650 

(706)342-4373 Office   ∙ (706)343-6455 Fax 

- 57 -



1. Short term rental may only be used in conjunction with a scheduled event, meaning an event at a 

predetermined time for a specific function, at the event facility know as The Sixty-Two. Viewing or touring 

the property are not events. 

2. Short-term rental may be rented no more that 2 nights prior to or 2 nights after an event. 

3. Short-term rental may only be rented as part of a package that includes rental of the main event building or 

property. 

4. Short-term rental may not be advertised on VRBO, AirBnB or other rental advertising websites or rental 

advertising venues. 

5. Short-term rental is limited to eight guests maximum. 

6. The event building and the groom’s building are not part of the short-term lodging rental. 

7. A commercial contractor must be used to build the cottage.  

8. No further rental of the previously illegal bridal cottage at 1030 VFW Lane, with he exception of the 

existing bookings by previous owner as proven by registration verification, prior to BOC meeting. 

9. Cottage must meet the definition of an accessory dwelling.  

10. Abuse of short-term rental will result in Planning & Development initiating process to have short term 

rental approval revoked. Property owner will be given one written warning.  

 

- 58 -



- 59 -



- 60 -



- 61 -



- 62 -



- 63 -



- 64 -



- 65 -



- 66 -



- 67 -



- 68 -



- 69 -



- 70 -



- 71 -



- 72 -



- 73 -



- 74 -



- 75 -



- 76 -



- 77 -



- 78 -



- 79 -



- 80 -



- 81 -



- 82 -



- 83 -



  
 

 

Memorandum 

 

Date:  September 27, 2024 

To:  Morgan County Board of Commissioners 

From:   Tara Cooner 

RE:  September Planning Commission recommendations 

 

The following is a summary of Planning Commission discussions and recommendations from the September 26, 

2024 Planning Commission meeting. 

 

I. Rochelle Wright is requesting a zoning map amendment, from AR to AG, for 57.9 acres located at 

2761 Athens Highway (Tax Parcel 025-065). 

II. Rochelle Wright is requesting conditional use approval for a short term rental on 57.9 acres located 

at 2761 Athens Highway (Tax Parcel 025-065). 

 

These items were presented together, as they are requests for the same property. The conditional use application is 

contingent upon the approval of the rezoning request.  

 

The applicant is the new owner of The Sixty-Two event facility on Athens Highway. She was not informed that the 

house located at 1030 VFW Lane was not part of the facility and short-term rentals that had been occurring there in 

conjunction with the event facility were illegal. The applicant and her husband intend to live in the house on VFW 

Lane so they can be close to their business, and want to construct a new bridal cottage behind the event facility 

building. Short term rentals are prohibited in AR zoning, hence the request to rezone to AG, where short-term 

rentals are a conditional use.  

 

Numerous weddings with overnight stays at the illegal short-term rental were already booked when the applicant 

purchased the property. She indicated during discussions with Staff that the pre-booked short-term rentals ended in 

September, but revealed at the Planning Commission meeting that they actually go through March 2025. Planning 

Commission reviewed the contentious history of short-term rentals in the county, including the many violations of 

the short-term rental at the event facility on Mergendollar Road. 

 

The Planning Commission discussed whether the applicant should be held responsible for the pre-bookings at the 

illegal short-term rental. The applicant is requesting that she be allowed to continue with the existing bookings and 

be approved for a new cottage, to be completed by March so she can continue with booking overnight stays without 

skipping months. The applicant stated that she is now having to vacate her home to accommodate the pre-booked 

short-term rentals. The Planning Commission stated that she should prove the bookings were from the previous 

owner and requested that proof be submitted to the Planning office prior to the BOC meeting on 10-1-24. 

 

Planning Commission unanimously recommended approval of the rezoning application. 

 

Planning Commission unanimously recommended approval of the conditional use application with the following 

conditions: 

 

MORGAN COUNTY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
150 East Washington Street, Suite 200 

P.O. Box 1357 

Madison, Georgia 30650 

(706)342-4373 Office   ∙ (706)343-6455 Fax 

- 84 -



1. Short term rental may only be used in conjunction with a scheduled event, meaning an event at a 

predetermined time for a specific function, at the event facility know as The Sixty-Two. Viewing or touring 

the property are not events. 

2. Short-term rental may be rented no more that 2 nights prior to or 2 nights after an event. 

3. Short-term rental may only be rented as part of a package that includes rental of the main event building or 

property. 

4. Short-term rental may not be advertised on VRBO, AirBnB or other rental advertising websites or rental 

advertising venues. 

5. Short-term rental is limited to eight guests maximum. 

6. The event building and the groom’s building are not part of the short-term lodging rental. 

7. A commercial contractor must be used to build the cottage.  

8. No further rental of the previously illegal bridal cottage at 1030 VFW Lane, with he exception of the 

existing bookings by previous owner as proven by registration verification, prior to BOC meeting. 

9. Cottage must meet the definition of an accessory dwelling.  

10. Abuse of short-term rental will result in Planning & Development initiating process to have short term 

rental approval revoked. Property owner will be given one written warning.  

 

- 85 -



- 86 -



- 87 -



- 88 -



- 89 -



- 90 -



- 91 -



- 92 -



- 93 -



- 94 -



- 95 -



- 96 -



- 97 -



- 98 -



- 99 -



- 100 -



- 101 -



- 102 -



- 103 -



- 104 -



- 105 -



- 106 -



- 107 -



- 108 -



- 109 -



- 110 -



- 111 -



- 112 -



- 113 -



- 114 -



- 115 -



- 116 -



- 117 -



- 118 -



- 119 -



- 120 -



- 121 -



- 122 -



- 123 -



- 124 -



- 125 -



- 126 -



- 127 -



- 128 -



- 129 -



- 130 -



- 131 -



- 132 -



- 133 -



- 134 -



- 135 -



- 136 -



- 137 -



- 138 -



- 139 -



- 140 -



- 141 -



- 142 -



- 143 -



- 144 -



- 145 -



- 146 -



- 147 -



- 148 -



- 149 -



- 150 -



- 151 -



- 152 -



- 153 -



- 154 -



- 155 -



- 156 -



- 157 -



- 158 -



- 159 -



- 160 -



- 161 -



- 162 -



- 163 -



- 164 -



- 165 -



- 166 -



- 167 -



- 168 -



- 169 -



- 170 -



- 171 -



- 172 -



- 173 -



- 174 -



- 175 -



- 176 -



- 177 -



- 178 -



- 179 -



- 180 -



- 181 -



- 182 -



- 183 -



- 184 -



- 185 -



- 186 -



- 187 -



- 188 -



- 189 -



- 190 -



- 191 -



- 192 -



- 193 -



- 194 -



- 195 -



- 196 -



- 197 -



- 198 -



- 199 -



- 200 -



- 201 -



- 202 -



- 203 -



- 204 -



- 205 -



MORGAN COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST

Department: Presenter(s): 

Meeting Date: mm/dd/yyyy

Wording for the Agenda: 

Type of Request: 

Background/History/Details: 

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners? 

If this item requires funding, please describe: 

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when? 

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?* Backup Provided with Request? 

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting. It is also

your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Approved by Finance 

Approved by Purchasing 

Manager's Approval

Staff Notes: 

Finance Adam Mestres

10/01/2024 New Business

Resolution to Amend the Budget

A budget amendment is needed to add Transit State Trust Fund revenue of $241,857 and Transit State Trust 
expenses of $241,857.  

Motion to approve the Resolution amending the FY25 budget. 

No

No Yes

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

No

- 206 -

amestres
Typewritten Text



2024-RES-008 
 

RESOLUTION – ADOPTION OF BUDGET - FISCAL YEAR 2025 
 
 
STATE OF GEORGIA 

COUNTY OF MORGAN 

WHEREAS, pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 36-81-6, the Morgan County Board of Commissioners shall adopt a 

budget ordinance or resolution to make appropriations in such sums as the governing authority may deem 

sufficient; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to O.C.G.A. §§ 36-81-5 and 36-81-6 and pursuant to a Resolution of this Board, the 

Morgan County Board of Commissioners approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2025 Budget at its regularly 

scheduled meeting on June 18, 2024; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 36-81-3 any amendments to the budget shall be adopted by ordinance 

or resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the Morgan County Board of Commissioners has determined that it is in the best interests of 

the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Morgan County to amend the FY 2025 Budget as follows 

in the attached amendment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Morgan County Board of Commissioners that the Board 

hereby approves and adopts the Fiscal Year 2025 Amended Budget, a copy of which is set forth on the 

attached document entitled “Amendment to FY 2025 Budget.”   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Morgan County Board of Commissioners that the Board hereby 

approves the budget amendments as set forth in the attached document entitled “Amendment to FY 2025 

Budget.” 

SO RESOLVED, this 1st day of October 2024. 

     
 
 
 

 
MORGAN COUNTY, GEORGIA 
Acting by and through its Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
 
 

- 207 -



2024-RES-008 
 

 
___________________________________________ 
 
Bill Kurtz, Chairman 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Blake McCormack, Vice-Chairman 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Philipp von Hanstein, Commissioner 

 
 

 
___________________________________________ 

             Ben Riden, Jr, Commissioner 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Donald B. Harris, Commissioner 
 

 
 

___________________________________________ 
Attest:  Kim Cox, County Clerk 

 
 

 

- 208 -



- 209 -



- 210 -



- 211 -



- 212 -



- 213 -



- 214 -



- 215 -



- 216 -



- 217 -



- 218 -



- 219 -



- 220 -



- 221 -



- 222 -



- 223 -



- 224 -



- 225 -



- 226 -


	Top
	Item1.	BOC Minutes 09-03-2024
	9-3-2024 BOC Minutes

	Item2.	Usher Richardson
	Richardson

	Item3.	Wes Bancroft on behalf of Towers LLC, Conditional Use
	Tower LLC -10-1-2024

	Item4.	Wright rezoning
	memo to BOC 10.1.24
	september.wright.rezone-cu

	Item5.	Wright conditional use
	memo to BOC 10.1.24
	september.wright.rezone-cu

	Item6.	Section 5311 Grant Application
	1
	Application BOC for signature

	Item7.	Resolution to Amend the Budget
	Budget Resolution

	Item8.	Revised Advantage Behavioral Health Lease
	Advantage Behavioral Revised Lease

	Item9.	Charter Broadband Infrastructure Agreement Second Amendment
	Charter Second Amendment for Broadband

	Item10.	County Manager Report
	Item11.	Public Comments on Agenda Items
	Item12.	Commissioner Comments
	Bottom

